
Children's Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Children's Scrutiny Panel to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 11 March 2020

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 4, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Minutes of the previous meeting 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 12 February 2020.

(Pages 1 - 6)

3  The recruitment and retention of foster carers & an update on 
Looked After Children (LAC) 

 Mike Kelly - Head of Looked After Children Services. 
 Tim Littlemore - Head of Service Integrated Social Work.
 Cathy Starbuck – Assistant Director Education Work and Skills. 

(Pages 7 - 26)

4  Service Budget Update - Chris Mee (Pages 27 - 36)

5  Any Other business 

6  Date, time and business for next meeting 

Wednesday 10 June 2020 at 2pm (1.30pm for members of the panel). 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811
Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 12.02.20                                                                                                         1

Children’s Scrutiny Panel
12 February 2020

Meeting commenced: 2pm.
Meeting ended: 4.25pm.

Present:
Councillor Brocklehurst – in the Chair

Councillors: Jim Cammell, Jillian Collinson, Laura Edwards, Ari Leitner, Mike McCusker, Lewis 
Nelson, Mike Pevitt, Neil Reynolds, Madeline Wade, Joan Walsh, Ronnie Wilson.

Co-opted Members: Dr Keith Archer, Jacqui Morrissey (Foster Parents Association), Judith 
Elderkin.

Officer: 
Sue Johnson – Head of Virtual School and Inclusion
Charlotte Ramsden – Strategic Director People
Liz Wright – Democratic Services - Clerk

Members of the public:
None.

1. Introduction, apologies for absence
There were no apologies for absence.

2. Declarations of interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3. Minutes of the previous meeting
It was agreed to take this item after the item presented by officers. 

4. The Managed Move Process in Salford – Sue Johnson

 Sue Johnson gave a presentation that was based on the original 2016 report Managed Moves 
in Salford: What works well. Next steps and updated to show developments since the report 
was published.  Questions from members were taken at the end of the presentation.

 The Managed Move Policy would in future be included in the Inclusion Strategy as it was 
recognised as an important element of the strategy.

 The Managed Move Project Group had been set up to implement recommendations from the 
2016 report and a designated officer had been in post for a period of time as recommended.

 The managed move process was explained and how it had been changed so that pupils 
themselves could also now request a move, with parental approval.

 The managed move process was one tool out of many that schools could use to address the 
needs of pupils so as to ensure they got the best put of their education.

 The way schools were involved and how they worked together had been clarified in the 
reviewed process.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 12.02.20                                                                                                         2

 The number of referrals for managed moves was decreasing and the rate of successful moves 
had increased but had fell again in 2018/19 when only 3/36 were successful (success in this 
measure was when a move became permanent).

 In the last two years there had been no Looked After Children (LAC) on managed moves and 
no LAC pupils had been permanently excluded.

 The development of the Inclusion Strategy had been key and this included:
o the development of inclusive practice within schools (such as Trauma Informed/Attachment 

Aware/Relational ‘behaviour’ policies; Emotionally Friendly Schools[EFS]; Link with SEN 
graduated approach to assessment and meeting pupils’ needs);

o the development of Team Around the School Model – multi-agency support for child, family 
and school;

o a strong interface and partnership between schools and social care/mental health support  
(Child in Need [CIN]/Child Protection [CP]) and build on work of Virtual School and Early 
Help

o a review and development of Local Authority (LA) practice and processes to support 
inclusion.

 EFS was now prominent in Salford and the inclusion and special educational needs and 
disabilities (SEND) strategies were linking up.

 What impact had the dip in successful managed moves had on the rate of exclusions?
Sometimes a managed move did not work but the focus on the pupil’s needs had led to a 
better outcome for individual pupils. The managed move process was often looked on as a last 
resort but for some pupils it should be used earlier, it depended on each child and the 
managed move process was one tool for the school to use.  The focus was on putting the 
child’s needs at the centre and seeing what was best for their individual circumstances.  

 Was any additional support provided for schools that took pupils vai the managed moves 
process?  Were some Headteachers reluctant to take pupils because of the extra strain it could 
put on limited resources?
Ofsted’s focus had shifted recently and they were looking closely at the impact schools were 
making and how best they used their resources. Inclusion overall was also a key focus under 
the new inspection framework and they were looking for a shift in curriculum design and culture 
to a child centred approach to reduce exclusions.  The LA monitored exclusion rates and 
looked for patterns and issues in individual schools.  Exclusion rates had reduced but were still 
not at a level that the LA viewed as appropriate.

 The Transition Policy had been reviewed to help reduce exclusions in Year 7 and the policy 
now included years 4 and 5 as well as 6 to improve transition from primary to secondary 
schools.

 Were Pupil Referral Units (PRUs) used in the managed moves process?
PRUs were not part of the managed move process. They were used to support pupils back into 
mainstream education and the pupils would return to a different school from where they were 
excluded.

 The process could be a fresh start for the pupil and also for the staff at the school.  What if the 
move failed and the staff/school did not want the pupil to return?
If the move was initiated by the pupil/parent a supported transfer was used and the previous 
school place would be kept open for 12 weeks and everyone was involved and supported the 
process so there was not a breakdown in relationships.

 There were many risk averse parents and this could have negative impact on their children’s 
health and wellbeing.  What was available to address this?

Page 2



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 12.02.20                                                                                                         3

School staff were being trained to deal with mental health issues and identify whether or not it 
was an issue for the pupils or whether the child was responding to its circumstances and 
environment. Work was also being done to make parents expectations reasonable.

 Were secondary schools getting involved with the EFS initiative?
Work was being done to raise the awareness of the value of EFS with the high schools and 
helping them to identify how they could improve e.g. developing safe spaces and peer mentors 
schemes. EFS was developed by Salford Educational Psychology Team and six schools were 
accredited and one secondary school had achieved the bronze accreditation.

 Did the Personal, Social, Health and Economic (PSHE) education curriculum support the EFS 
scheme?
The EFS ethos did not always need extra resources it was often about doing things differently 
and good practice and the PSHE curriculum used well could support this. 

 Were schools approaching the LA for support to avoid exclusions and was the LA actively 
promoting the EFS approach?
The LA monitored exclusions and actively supported schools.  There was other good practice 
that was shared with schools and encouraged as well as ESF.  There was lots of training for 
staff and the training to support LAC was seen to be having an impact.  Schools did ask the LA 
directly for support before, during and after exclusions (including support for the governing 
boards reviewing exclusions).

 A member commented that they had experience of support to in school and to help avoid 
exclusions for LAC and it had been a very positive experience.  The response had been quick 
when helped had been requested and it was very supportive, personalised and focused on the 
child’s needs. 

 What were the EFS accreditation criteria and had steps been taken to make sure it was not too 
much of a bureaucratic process that schools were deterred from getting involved?
The EFS accreditation was being reviewed to address this as some schools had concerns 
about the bureaucracy involved.

 What was the relationship between SEND and exclusions in Salford?
A high % of permanent excluded pupils did not have an Education Health care Plan (EHCP) 
and work was being done by the LA to make sure schools were addressing pupils’ SEND 
before exclusions were used. There was a challenge around the under identification of SEND 
in schools generally.

 The members requested data on how many pupils involved in managed moves had not had 
their SEND identified before the process was used.

 Were there counsellors in schools?
The conversation sparked in schools by EFS is about developing a culture for all and not just 
about providing counsellors and mental health first aiders.  It was about being proactive and 
positive as well as meeting the needs of those pupils who already faced mental health issues.  
The annual Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) plan covered all the support 
available to support young peoples’ (YP) mental health.

 The members requested that the annual CAMHS plan be made available to them once it was 
approved.

 What were the triggers for a managed move?
Changes in behaviour, attendance, general disruptive behaviour, relationship breakdown with 
the school and bullying had all been identified triggers.  When a pupil or parent make the 
referral it could often be linked to a breakdown in relationships with friends and with the school.  

 33 managed moves had failed in 2018/19. What happened next to those pupils?

Page 3



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 12.02.20                                                                                                         4

The LA would look into these cases and get the information about what happened and to those 
pupils and if it was better for them when they went back to their original schools.

 The members requested to see this information when it was available.
 How would the LA ensure that schools were using the managed moves process earlier and not 

just as a last resort? Were schools off-rolling pupils at certain times of year i.e. particularly at 
exam times?
The LA had asked schools to review how the managed moves process was utilised in their 
behaviour policies and was having very open conversations with schools to ensure this 
happened. CAMHS was performing better than the LA targets for its waiting times for the 1st 
and 2ns appointments but needed to improve for the 3rd appointments when the treatments 
usually commenced.  Families not turning up for appointments with 42nd Street (that provided 
the lower level support) and this provided many challenges for the service. The LA was actively 
monitoring schools for any signs of off-rolling and any activity was challenged.  Ofsted were 
very focused on off-rolling.

 A member commented on the approach taken by Bolton College as a beacon for mental health 
support and that staff received mental health trauma training and 10% of staff were trained as 
mental health first aiders.

 There was a dip in success of managed moves from 2014 onwards. What was being done 
about this?
There was pressure on resources due to budget restrictions and there was an ongoing review 
of how the process could be done more efficiently and effectively.  

 Salford was ranked in the middle in terms of the Greater Manchester (GM) authorities for the 
number of exclusions. Wigan Council had a low exclusion rate.  Was there a link between the 
number of exclusions and the managed moves?
There was no GM data for managed moves as most authorities did not collect and publish the 
information in the way that Salford did so it was not possible to make comparisons at this time.

 The members requested data on unsuccessful managed moves and what the outcome was for 
the pupils for these unsuccessful moves.

 Was the lack of a statutory framework for managed moves an advantage or disadvantage?
The LA has an annual conversation with Ofsted each year and Ofsted would challenge the LA 
on the success of the management moves process regardless of there being no statutory 
framework. Ofsted would also challenge individual schools when they inspected them.  The LA 
had benefited from not having a statutory framework in being able to develop and approach 
that was robust and worked in Salford.

 Were the reasons investigated with families as to why they did not turn up for CAMHS 
appointments?
The LA was exploring how best to monitor non-attendance especially when they were not 
aware of referrals, for example when made via GPs.

 How does the LA support families who are from outside the UK and particularly refugee 
families?
The EMTAS (Ethnic Minority and Traveller Advice Service) provided support to these families 
and the In Year Fair Access (IYFA) panel was used to support their access into schools.

 How was the education service fairing in terms of funding currently?
The need in the city far outstripped the available resources so schools and services were 
constantly having to review ways of working to ensure best value.  The LA was always looking 
at the best way to use expertise (for example, via the Virtual Headteacher and Head of 
Inclusion). The LA constantly reviews the funding streams available, nationally and at GM level 
to make sure Salford can benefit from all available pots of money.

Page 4



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 12.02.20                                                                                                         5

The members thanked Sue Johnson and Charlotte Ramsden for the detailed presentation and 
answers to questions.

Resolved: That the members:

1. requested data on how many pupils involved in managed moves had not had their SEND 
identified before the process was used;

2. requested that the CAMHS plan be made available to them once it had been approved in 
March;

3. the data on the number of unsuccessful managed moves and what happened to the pupils 
when they returned to their original schools and the schools and council wards involved.

5. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 08.01.20

 Items 7 & 8: The dates of the January, February and March meetings should read 2021.

Resolved:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2020 were approved as a true and 
correct record subject to the above amendment.

6. Matters arising from the previous minutes

6a. Item 4 – Education Update

 Members made the following comments:
o The focus on comparisons with statistical neighbours was not as important as making sure 

Salford improved as compared to national expectations.
o Benchmarking was important but as an LA targets should be aspirational as the young 

people of Salford deserved that.
o Performance at Key Stage 3 (KS3) and KS4 across the city generally needed to improve 

greatly and impact of the city’s investment in Early Years was seen in the good primary 
school performance but did not translate to the secondary school performance.

o The secondary school performance had to be seen in the context of a significant number of 
Salford families choosing to educate their children outside Salford and the challenge for the 
LA when most of the secondary schools were academies and outside of the direct control of 
the LA. 

o There was best practice in the primary schools that could be beneficial to the secondary 
schools, especially in transition where a primary model for Year 7 could have benefits in 
terms of keeping the performance from primary moving at the same pace into the 
secondary phase.  This worked at Oakwood Academy and could perhaps be further 
investigated.

o The recent curriculum changes (including the English Baccalaureate) and Progress 8 had 
impacted negatively on the cultural curriculum, which many of the pupils in Salford could 
benefit from and it had also impacted on the development of employability skills in schools.  
This had a particular impact in Salford and on young peoples’ opportunities.

o The curriculum also needed to better reflect the personal skills young people would need 
such as managing personal finances.  Learning the value of money was particularly 
important for young people whose families may exist on benefits.

o Parents involvement in schools and the provision of classes to support parents develop 
skills to help their children (in Maths and English and study skills especially) was important 
in Salford.

Page 5



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 12.02.20                                                                                                         6

7. The work programme

 Following the previous discussions it was agreed to include secondary school performance 
under the items in abeyance.

 It was agreed that the service budget update should be included on the Work Programme for 
the March meeting and the update should focus on changes to the budget and how the 
challenges and pressures have been addressed.

 It was noted that the Learning City item had been deferred but remained in the abeyance list 
and would be put on the agenda again when appropriate.

 There was a discussion about ensuring links with the Corporate Parenting Panel and the clerk 
took advice from the Committee Services Team who suggested quarterly updates at future 
panel meetings from Mike Kelly the Head of the LAC Service. The members agreed this.

Resolved: That the members agreed to the following changes to the Work Programme:

 secondary school performance should be added to the topics in abeyance;
 quarterly updates from Mike Kelly the Head of the LAC Service would be added to the work 

programme; 
 Service Budget Update should be added for the next meeting with a focus on changes to the 

budget and how the challenges and pressures have been addressed.

8. Any other business

8a. Lark Hill Community Primary School

 A member who was working with the school gave an update to the panel.  They reported that 
an Interim Executive Board (IEB) was in place and the support from the LA was seeming to 
have an impact as improvements were starting to be seen, particularly around behaviour from 
learning. 

 Improved leadership in the school was making and impact and this could improve further when 
more permanent arrangements were made.

1. Date and time of future meetings

 The next meeting would be held on Wednesday 11 March 2020 at 2pm in Committee Room 4 
(1.30pm for panel members).

 Dr Archer submitted his apologies for the meeting on 11th March.

Page 6



Presentation to Children’s Scrutiny 

Panel 

11th March 2020

Mike Kelly 

Head of Looked after Children’s Service

Tim Littlemore

Head of Service, Integrated Social Work

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 3



Fostering Recruitment and 

Retention
• The foster care allowance increase came into effect on the 1st April 

2019.

• In comparison with other NW Local Authorities, Salford was paying 

between the second and fourth lowest rates (of 20 authorities 

submitting reliable figures, dependent on age bands

• The new rate placed Salford between the 8th and 13th best paying 

authorities (depending on age bands); 

• Between 7 and 12 LAs are still paying a higher rate

• Salford produced a press release on 3rd April, promoting the 

Council’s increase in foster carer allowances

P
age 8



What happened next?

• Since the increase was introduced, we have had a similar number of 

fostering enquiries as the same time the previous year.

• Increase in initial visits to foster carers - a rise of 44%, which would 

indicate that our marketing and promoting of fostering for Salford, is 

reaching the correct target group.

• In 2018/19, eleven ‘general’ foster carers were recruited. 

• For the year 2019/20, eleven ‘general’ foster carers will also be 

approved, with a further three approvals planned to be achieved in 

April 2020. 

• These figures would indicate that foster carer recruitment has 

remained steady and has not led to a significant increase in 

approvals on the back of the increase in allowances.

P
age 9



• It has however had a positive impact on retention and morale.

• During the consultation period with foster carers, where we shared 

a smaller proposed increase, we had a number of foster carers who 

were so disheartened by the proposal that they had contacted IFAs 

and were threatening to transfer from Salford.

• The feedback, once the allowance increase was announced, was 

extremely positive and in fact no foster carers transferred to IFAs or 

other LAs, compared to two sets of foster carers who moved to 

IFAs last year. 

• The feedback from foster carers was extremely positive which 

serves to assist with morale and loyalty to Salford, going into this 

next year. 

P
age 10



• The latest north west fostering data covers the period 

2018/19

• The data is useful in understanding the wider 

challenges of recruitment facing local authorities

P
age 11



The reasons why children go into care and the 

causes of family breakdown in Salford

• The child’s parents might have agreed to this – for 

example, if they are too unwell to look after their child 

or if their child has a disability and needs respite care. 

• The child could be an unaccompanied asylum seeker, 

with no responsible adult to care for them.

• A child may be relinquished as a baby or abandoned.

• A child or young person’s parents may have died and 

there is no one who has Parental Responsibility or a 

relative able to care for the child.

• A young person may become looked after because 

they have been remanded to a secure setting.   

P
age 12



• The young person may have been thrown out of home 

by their parents at 16 years and become homeless and 

requested to become looked after.

• The family may be under acute stress due to previous 

trauma and family relationships may have become 

dysfunctional. For example child hood experiences or 

experiences in early adulthood may impact on parent’s 

mental health or on their ability to parent consistently, 

resulting in challenging and anti- social behaviour from 

the young person and the family feeling they are 

unable to cope.  

P
age 13



Looked After Children Admissions April –

October 2019

• During the period April - October 2019 there were a total of 110 

'looked after children' admissions, 

• An average of 15.7 per month. The number of admissions per 

month ranged from 8 in April to 35 in July. 

• Abuse/Neglect was the largest category of need accounting for over 

53% of the total admissions, 

• 27% having a category of 'Other' 

• 12% Family Dysfunction. 

• 34 of the total admissions were aged between 10-15 

•

P
age 14



• 14 admissions were aged 16 and over

• Almost 50% of the total admissions were for cases 

aged 10 and over.

• Cases aged under 1 accounted for 19% of the total 

admissions. 

• Overall, Males made up 58% of the total admissions 

but the gender split varied from 52% female in June to 

25% in July. 

• 37% of admissions had a legal status of S.20 during 

the period, 33%Interim Care Order and a further 23.6% 

having a status of Police Protection Order. 

P
age 15



Emergency Admissions April – October 2019

• 19 Random cases selected – accommodated in an 

emergency - selected from 110 children who were 

looked after between April-October 2019.

• 1 was a homeless young person

• 3 were subject to neglect

• 4 concerns about trafficking

• 1 was an unaccompanied asylum seeking child

• 2 had been remanded into secure accommodation

• 5 had been subjected to physical abuse

• 2 subjected to physical and emotional abuse

P
age 16



• 1 as a result of parental mental health and domestic 

abuse.

• Ages ranged from 17 to a baby, with the average age 

of 8 years. 10 were female whilst 9 were male.

• 9 were as a result of a new referral to the Bridge, 7 had 

no previous involvement from Children’s Services 

• 10 were already open cases to Children’s Social Care 

of which one child had been subject to a Child 

Protection plan, whilst 9 had been supported at Child in 

Need.

P
age 17



• 5 children were accommodated under S20; 12 

following a Police Protection Order and 2 looked after 

due to being remanded in secure accommodation 

(LASPO) 

• 2 Young people remained accommodated under S20; 

3 became subject to Care Orders, 2 returned home on 

Supervision Orders, with a total of 12 children returning 

home. 

P
age 18



Youth Service offer to Looked after children in 

Salford – October 2019

• A designated senior youth worker has the lead for links 

with the Looked after children service. The officer visits 

all the residential homes in Salford.

• All residential staff are aware of the role in supporting 

young people..

• The support usually takes place away from the home 

and the youth workers spend time with the young 

people finding out their interests.

• The Youth Service receives referrals from the weekly 

multi agency missing from home panel, of which it is a 

core member.

P
age 19



The offer

• Duke of Edinburgh award

• Youth centres

• Groups (LGBTQ, young women’s, outdoor education 

session)

• Individual youth worker support (range of issues)

• Bespoke activities (aligned to young person’s interest)

P
age 20



Examples
• Young woman aged 16 was encouraged to attend 

Eccles Youth Centre Friday evening session, the girls 

group, enrolled on the Duke of Edinburgh award and 

received a number of 1:1 sessions 

• Young man aged 14, attends Dean’s SPY project and 

has particular interest in fishing

• Young woman attends  the Friday evening session at 

Eccles youth centre 

• Young women attended youth centre in Eccles

• Young man attends the  youth council and Bridgewater 

Youth Centre on Friday evenings

• Young woman agreed to undertake Duke of Edinburgh 

award

P
age 21



Extended Youth Support

• The youth service was asked to develop a temporary 

extended youth support project. This project evolved 

from the way youth workers were being asked to offer 

out of hours support for young people at risk of foster 

care placement breakdown or parental abandonment. 

• A project co-ordinator has been recruited to develop 

this project for 6 months, leading up to the No Wrong 

Door (Route 29) project. A bank of youth supporters 

have been recruited and the service has been 

promoted to social work managers

P
age 22



Example

• Young woman aged 14, spending a lot of time at the 
Beacon centre supported by range of youth workers 
and centre staff, as the centre is a place of safety for 
her

P
age 23



• Members of the Scrutiny Panel should be mindful that 

regular reports are presented to the monthly Corporate 

Parenting Panel in relation to Looked after Children, in 

the areas of Health, Education, Fostering, Adoption, 

Leaving Care, residential children’s homes and 

performance data. These reports are available and 

may assist in other areas of your future work 

programme.

P
age 24



Any questions?

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No.

REPORT OF STRATEGIC FINANCE MANAGER

ON BEHALF OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

TO CHILDREN’S SCRUTINY PANEL 
ON 

11th MARCH 2020 

TITLE: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2019/20, CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2019/20

RECOMMENDATIONS:

It is recommended that Children’s Scrutiny Panel:-

 Consider the current position and forecast year-end position for the service group’s 
revenue budget, Dedicated Schools Grant budget and Children’s element of the 
Integrated Fund.

 Review the current position regarding the service group’s 2019/20 capital 
programme.

 Request further information as necessary to help to ensure good governance.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

(a) Revenue Budget

The service group’s budget for 2019/20 is £86.975m and the forecast expenditure for the 
year is £87.328m. Consequently, there is a forecast adverse variation of £0.353m for the 
financial year. 

(b) Dedicated Schools Grant

The DSG allocation for central services in 2019/20 is £43.279m and the forecast 
expenditure for the year is £48.685m, a forecast adverse variation of £5.406m.

(c) Integrated Fund (Children’s)

The latest position reported to Children’s Commissioning Committee for the children’s 
element of the integrated fund reflects the period up to the end of December 2019 and 
shows a budget pressure of £6.7m.

(d) Capital Programme

Page 27

Agenda Item 4



2

The service group programme for 2019/20 is currently £12.022m. The phasing of 
expenditure means that spend totalling £1.896m has been incurred for the period April to 
December 2019. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
 SAP general ledger and BI reports
 Various documents held on the accountancy team

KEY DECISION: NO

DETAILS:

1 Introduction

1.1 This report is set out in four main sections. 

 Section 2 sets out the current position of the revenue budget and forecasts the year 
end position, highlighting any risks/sensitivities.

 Section 3 sets out the current position of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and 
forecasts the year end position, highlighting any risks/sensitivities.

 Section 4 provides an update on savings requirement

 Section 5 provides an update of the Capital Programme.

2 Revenue budget

2.1 The current position and year end forecast for the Revenue Budget is set out in Table A 
below. Agreed savings (discussed in section 4) have been built into the budget figures. 
Expenditure data reflects salaries, wages and other expenditure up to 31st December 
2019.

2.2 At this stage of the financial year it is not possible to project income and expenditure with 
absolute certainty. There is therefore still a risk of unforeseen variations to the forecast 
outturn.

Page 28



3

2.3 Table A: Revenue budget to 31 December 2019

Division of 
service

Annual 
budget

Forecast 
outturn 
expend

Variance 
Budget 

Pressure – 
Integrated 

Fund 

Risk 
assessment

£000 £000 £000 £000

Leadership & 
Safeguarding 2,149 2,153 (4) 13 ● (GREEN)

Specialist 
Services 34,577 34,940 (363) (6,932) ● (RED)

SEN, Access & 
Inclusion 27,686 27,628  58 (637) ● (AMBER)

Education & 
Helping Families 22,563 22,607 (44) 17 ● (GREEN) 

Total 86,975 87,328 (353) (7,539) ● (RED)

2.4 It is forecast that the Children’s Services (non-pool) revenue budget will overspend by 
£0.353m. This position is mainly due to underachievement of external income targets, 
however it is anticipated that this pressure will reduce during the year.

2.5 In 2019/20 the Council and Salford CCG expanded its pooled budget arrangements 
through the creation of an integrated fund covering a range of Children’s, Adults and 
Primary Care services. Under the terms of the associated risk share agreement each 
partner would contribute to the cost of budget pressures in proportion to the contributions 
made to the pool for each service area. This means that rather than the budget pressures 
falling directly upon the council, the council will instead contribute its share of any budget 
pressures with the Children’s and Adults Services to the integrated fund.

The latest position reported to the Children’s Commissioning Committee for the 
children’s element of the integrated fund reflects the period up to the end of December 
2019. Children’s Services face budget pressures of £7.5m offset partly by savings on the 
CCG element of the pool. The overall forecast adverse pool position is £6.7m which is 
largely due to continued demand pressures within the looked after children area of the 
budget, particularly in regard to costs of outside placements and SEN Transport costs. 
Members will be aware of the work being undertaken to address some of these pressures 
such as the No Wrong Door model. However, should the year end position reflect the 
current forecast the council would be expected to contribute just over £4.5m towards 
these pressures. 

 

Page 29



4

3 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)

3.1 The year-end forecast for centrally held Dedicated Schools Grant budgets is set out in 
Table B below.  

 
3.2 At this stage of the financial year it is not possible to project income and expenditure with 

absolute certainty. There is therefore a risk of unforeseen variations to the forecast 
outturn.

3.3 Table B: DSG dedicated schools grant forecast

DSG 
funding 
block

2019/20 
Allocation

Forecast 
outturn 
expend

Forecast 
variance Risk 

Forecast 
balance 

31st Mar 20
£000 £000 £000 £000

High needs 23,375 28,696 (5,321) ● (RED) (15,401)
Early years 15,690 15,741 (51) ● (AMBER) 172
Schools 4,214 4,248 (34) ● (GREEN) (71)

Total 43,279 48,685 (5,406) ● (RED) (15,300)

It is forecast that in-year expenditure will be over budget by £5.406m by year end. This is due 
in the main to a forecast overspend on the High Needs block of £5.3m. 

The projected overspend on the High Need block is a continuation of the pressures 
experienced in the previous years with a deficit balance having been carried forward from 
18/19 of £10.1m. The total projected deficit on the High Need block at the end of 19/20 
therefore being £15.3m.

Commissioned by the Local Government Association, ISOS research into trends in 
spending for children and young people with SEND quantifies the current pressure on 
budgets for children and young people with SEND and explores the reasons behind 
the increasing expenditure on high needs funding. https://www.local.gov.uk/have-we-
reached-tipping-point-trends-spending-children-and-young-people-send-england

The projected over spend is as a result of a number of factors which are outlined 
below

 Increasing level of need in the city

Page 30

https://www.local.gov.uk/have-we-reached-tipping-point-trends-spending-children-and-young-people-send-england
https://www.local.gov.uk/have-we-reached-tipping-point-trends-spending-children-and-young-people-send-england


5

Of the population in Salford, 19.1 % are in receipt of some form of provision for their 
Special Educational Needs. This is far higher than the England average of 14.6%.

There are:-

 1949 children and young people (0-25) with an EHC Plan. 
 627 children and young people placed in maintained or academy Special 

Schools
 128 children and young people attending non-maintained or Independent 

Special Schools.
 177 young people with EHCPs attend General Further education or Sixth Forms
 29 young people attend Specialist post 16/19 settings 
 27 young people are undertaking supported internships
 9  children and young people who have EHC Plans are electively home 

educated

The age breakdown for children and young people with an EHC Plan is 
 0-5 years          96 (5% of all EHC Plans)
 5-10 years      737 (38% of all EHC Plans)
 11-15 years    766 (39% of all EHC Plans)
 16-19 years    291 (15% of all EHC Plans)
 20-25 years     59  (3% of all EHC Plans)

Nationally, EHC Plans are most prevalent at age 15, where 3.8% have an EHC Plan. 
In Salford the percentage of 15 year olds with an EHC Plan is 4.6%, higher than the 
England average.

In Salford there is generally an incremental rise in the number of children and young 
people with an EHC Plan in each age group from 3 to 16 and then numbers drop with 

Type of Support %of Total Census Population 

No SEND 80.9% (All England -85.4 %)

SEN Support 15.7% (All England – 11.7%)

EHC Plan 3.4% (All England -2.9 %)

Page 31



6

a sharp decline from age 20 to 25.  However, this will begin to grow as the cohorts 
move through the system. 

The number of children or young people with a statement of SEND or requiring an 
Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP) has risen nationally by 35% between 2014 
and 2018.  In Salford the rise is 46%. 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Under Age 5  (Salford) 14 62 32 82 96
Aged 5-10  (Salford) 557 508 619 693 737
Aged 11-15 (Salford) 656 572 672 749 766
Aged 16-19 (Salford) 53 193 108 235 291
Aged 20-25 (Salford) 3 3 12 33 59

Growth of EHC Plans in Salford over a 5 Year Period

N
um

be
r o

f E
hC

 P
la

ns

 Rising unit costs of provision
Nationally, young people over the age of 16 constitute 23% or all EHCPs and 17% of 
high needs expenditure. In Salford, young people over the age of 16 constitute 18% of 
all EHCPs and 10% of high needs expenditure. At the same time as rising numbers of 
children and young people with SEND, ISOS research found evidence that the unit 
costs of providing support were also rising. This is true in Salford also as more children 
presenting with complex needs attract higher banding levels thus pushing up the 
overall unit cost. ISOS recorded that of particular concern to local areas is the 
increased reliance on the INMSS sector as local special schools have reached 
capacity, because of the relatively high cost of this provision. While only 6% of children 
and young people with EHCPs are in INMSS, information supplied by some of their 
fieldwork authorities suggests that these placements account for on average 14% of 
expenditure.  In Salford the position is even more challenging as 16% of the high needs 
block is expended on the independent and non-maintained sector, which is for 7% of 
children and young people with EHCPs. 

 Increase in overall population
Over recent years there has been an increase in the overall children and young people 
population. This has had a more significant impact in some areas than in others, the 
impact of the population growth on the need to spend is not evenly felt. Some local 
areas have experienced much higher population growth than others. This presents an 
issue because, prior to the introduction of the high needs funding formula in 2016-17, 

Page 32



7

high need block allocations were tied to historical spending patterns and were not 
based on population change. Even since the introduction of the new funding formula 
only half the high needs block allocation is subject to a formula calculation (with the 
remaining 50% still based on historical spending patterns) which arguably still leaves 
those experiencing rapid population growth with a funding gap. By way of illustration, 
the ten local authorities which have seen the highest population growth in pupils 
recorded on the school census since 2014 have experienced an average reduction in 
their per capita high needs budget from £717 per head to £640 per head. Salford has 
experienced the 11th highest population growth in pupils recorded on the school 
census of all Local Authorities.  

 Pressure on school budgets 
Prior to April 2018, there was no restriction on the movement between blocks.  
However, from 2018/19 there was a requirement that funding from the Schools Block 
had to be allocated to schools but Local Authorities (LAs) were able to transfer up to 
0.5% of their school block funding into another block, with the approval of Schools 
Forum. Where the LA wanted to move more than 0.5% of the Schools’ Block, the LA 
had to submit a disapplication request to the Secretary of State. With the agreement 
of Schools Forum, Salford has transferred 0.5% in both 18/19 and 19/20 but the 
continuation of this transfer in 20/21 was not approved by forum in the light of both 
continued pressure on school budgets and the increase in High Needs block 20/21 
allocation announced in December.

The pressure on the Early Years block budget is as a result of:-

 Implementation of the National Funding formula in Early Years, which restricts the 
level of 3 and 4 year old grant allocation which can be retained by the council for 
central expenditure to 5%.

 Previous budget decisions to switch budget to Early Years DSG 

5 Capital 

5.1 Introduction
This report advises Children’s Scrutiny Panel of recent developments regarding the capital 
programme.
  

5.2 Expenditure to Date
Children’s Scrutiny Panel is asked to note the following summary of actual expenditure 
against expected expenditure as at the end of December 2019.

Page 33



8

Table 1 – Actual Spend Against Profile

High Level Summary Current 
Programme

Expected 
spend to 
date

Actual spend 
to date

Variance

£m £m £m £m
Basic Need 5.476 0.211 0.211 -
Capital Maintenance 4.546 1.109 1.109 -
SEND 1.000 0.060 0.060
Children's Other - 0.516 0.516
Social Care Management System 1.000 - -
Total 12.022 1.896 1.896 -

5.3    2019/20 Capital Programme Adjustments

Table 2 – Programme
High Level Summary Original Current Variation Comments

£m £m £m £m
Basic Need 5.476 5.476 -
Capital Maintenance 4.546 4.546 -
SEND 1.000 1.000 -
Social Care Management System 1.000 1.000 -
Total 12.022 12.022 - -

Table 3 – Resources
High Level Summary Last month Current Variation Comments

£m £m £m £m
Unsupported borrowing - self financing - - -
Unsupported borrowing - general support 1.000 1.000 -
Subtotal - Internal resources 1.000 1.000 -
Grants 11.022 11.022 -
Other contributions - - -
Subtotal - External resources 11.022 11.022 -
Total resources 12.022 12.022 -

5.4 Issues/Risks
At this stage of the year there are no issues / risks to report. The capital programme 
will continue to be closely monitored to identify any budget pressures at an early stage.

High Level Summary Current 
Programme

Expected 
spend to 
date

Actual spend 
to date

Variance

£m £m £m £m
Basic Need 5.476          0.069          0.069          -             
Capital Maintenance 4.546          0.127          0.127          -             
SEND 1.000          0.001          0.001          
Social Care Management System 1.000          -             -             
Total 12.022        0.197          0.197          -             

Page 34



9

6 Recommendations

It is recommended that Children’s Scrutiny Panel:-

 Consider the current position and forecast year-end position for the service group’s 
revenue budget and Dedicated Schools Grant budget

 Review the current position regarding the service group’s 2019/20 capital 
programme.

 Request further information as necessary to help to ensure good governance.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

2019/20 Revenue Budget, 2019/20 Capital Programme

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

Equality impact assessments are assessed at an individual savings level by the 
service group responsible

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

Key risks to budgetary control and savings are identified in this report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

Not applicable

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

This report concerns key aspects of the Council’s revenue finances and has been 
produced by the Finance Division.

Page 35



10

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

Not applicable

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

Not applicable

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

Not applicable

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Not applicable

CONTACT OFFICER: Chris Mee, tel. 0161 778 0434, chris.mee@salford.gov.uk, Dave 
Cope 0161 778 0213 dave.cope@salford.gov.uk

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:

All

Page 36

mailto:chris.mee@salford.gov.uk
mailto:dave.cope@salford.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	3 The recruitment and retention of foster carers & an update on Looked After Children (LAC)
	4 Service Budget Update - Chris Mee

